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SETTTEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the

charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of both a

trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

Settlebeck school is a mixed, converter academy school for pupils aged 11 to 15, serving a catchment area in

Sedberghandthesurroundingarea. lthasapupil capacityof220andhadaroll of l9Sintheschool censuson

07 October 2021.

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's

memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The

trustees of Settlebeck School Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes

of company law. The charitable company is known as Settlebeck School Academy Trust.

Details of the trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on

page 1.

Members' LiabiliW

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in

tlie event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,

such amount as may be required, not exceeding f 10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased

to be a member.

Trustee's lndemnities

The academy trust has purchased indemnity insurance to protect trustees and officers from claims arising in

connection with academy business.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The trustees are appointed under the terms of the academy trust's articles of association as follows:
. The members may appoint up to 6 trustees

' A minimum of 2 Parent Trustees elected or appointed under Articles 53-56 in the event that no Local

Governing Bodies are established under Article 100a or if no provision is made for at least 2 Parent Local

Governors on each established Local Governing Body pursuant to Article 101A.
. Up to 1 LA trustee
' The total number of Trustees including the Accounting Officer if they so choose to act as Trustee under

Article 57 who are employees of the Academy Trust shall not exceed one third of the total number of
Trustees.

' Providing that the Accounting Officer agrees so to act, the Members may by ordinary resolution appoint
the Accounting Officer as a Trustee.

. Any trustee elected by the Secretary of State for Education.

. The Trustees may appoint up to 3 Co-opted Trustees.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees (continued)

New trustees are recruited on the basis of the skills and competencies required to address gaps highlighted in
regular skills audits ofthe existing board oftrustees.

The term of office for all trustees, except the Accounting officer, is four years. The Accounting officer's term of
office runs parallel with his contract of employment. The trustees who were in office at 31st August 2021 who
served throughout the period, except where shown, are listed on page 1.
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SETTTEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the lnduction and Training of Trustees.

The training and induction provided for new Trustees is specifically tailored to the needs of the individual and

their existing experience. Settlebeck School Academy Trust recognises that new trustees do not necessarily

have a background in education and/or a thorough understanding of the school. To ensure they receive the

necessary support to undertake their duties, the induction process is tailored to the needs of the individual and

includes;
. A preliminary informal meeting with the Chair of Governors to ensure they understand their general

responsibilities and time commitment.

. An induction meeting with the Chair of Governors which includes a tour of the school.

. Regular training on developments in Governance issues.

' Annual training related to each ofthe trustee's specific needs.

Orsa nisational Structu re

The trustees are responsible for the general control and management of the administration of the trust in

accordance with the provisions set out in the Memorandum and Articles of Association. The trustees are

accountable for the performance of Settlebeck School Academy Trust and as such must;

' Ensure clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction.

. Hold the Academy Headteacher to account for the educational performance of its pupilS and the

performance management of staff.

. Oversee the financial performance of the academy and ensure that monies are well spent and within

agreed spending levels.

Arrangements for Setting Pav and Remuneration of Kev Management Personnel

The Trust board holds responsibility for setting the pay and remuneration of the academy's key management

personnel in accordance with the Pay Policy for Teachers based on the format of the DFE's model policy an d

the NJC terms and conditions for support staff. Pay progression is based on an annual cycle running from the

1st September to 31st August and is determined by the achievement of pre-determined performance

objectives. Responsibility for the appraisal process has been delegated to the Headteacher's Pay Review

Committee, supported by an officer from South Lakes Federation, and the Pay and Personnel Committee (both

sub committees of the Trust Board).
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Trade union faciliW time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials

durine the relevant oeriod

Full-time equivalent employee number

1 1

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Paid trade union activities

There was no paid union activity during the period

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Settlebeck School supports the rationale that there is strength in partnerships and is a member of the South

Lakes Federation to bring rigour, challenge and a greater capacity for improvement. The collaborative

federation is made up of nine secondary schools, Kendal College and a special school within the South Lakes

area, providing an opportunity for curriculum enrichment, access for students to vocational courses and

support for gifted and talented students. A series of 'thresholds for performance' or benchmarks for

attainment and progress of students are set within the federation and support for improvement provided

where necessary.

Objectives and Activities

Obiects and Aims

The main objects of the academy trust are:

' The academy trust's object is specifically restricted to the provision to advance, for the public benefit,

education by establishing, maintaining, managing and developing the school and by promoting a broad
and balanced curriculum.

' The academy trust's principle objective and activity of the academy trust is the education of students
between the ages of 11 to 15.

Obiectives, Strategies and Activities

Settlebeck School is a friendly, vibrant and ambitious school, where every member of its community is valued as
an individual. We are committed to making the difference for all our young people. we aim to ensure our
students are fully equipped with the skills, knowledge, qualifications and values to enable them to lead fulfilling
adult lives, be active members of society and succeed in the career of their choosing.

Academic standards are our priority and we believe that exceptional results are a product of high quality
teaching, outstanding pastoral care and support. The 'family' feel of our small academy offers security and a
supportive environment in which children thrive.

Percentase of time Number of emolovees

0% 0

r% - 50% L

5t% - 99% 0

t@% 0

fotal cost of faciliw time €750

Iotal oav bill f1,384,861

% of total pay bill spent on faciliw time 0.o54%

Page 5



SETTTEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Obiectives. Stratesies and Activities (continued)

The main objectives for the academy during the year ending 31st August 2O2t are summarised below:

. That all school business was conducted to the highest possible standards with integrity and

transparency.

. To comply with all statutory legislation and curriculum requirements

. To promote the school's values of respect, responsibility and aspiration

. To ensure that every student achieves the best they possibly can

' Ensure that all students have access to a high quality education regardless of background, ability or

additional need.
. Raise standards of achievement for all
. Continue to improve the school's effectiveness by continued focus on self-improvement
. Continue to seek ways of reducing the demand on the school budget by undertaking careful analysis of

the potential for all cost centres to make savings and implementing best value and value for money

strategies.

. To be committed to collaboration with the schools within the South Lakes Federation and others outside

the partnership.

Public Benefit

ln setting the objectives, the trustees have given

guidance on public benefit and in particular to

education.

Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance

careful consideration to the Charity Commission's general

its supplementary public benefit guidance on advancing

Settlebeck School is in its tenth year of operation, changing to academy status in 2011. Numbers on roll have

increased from 184 to 195 over this period. The school has an Ofsted 'Good' rating

During this challenging year, due to the pandemic, we have completely redesigned the way the school operates

during the enforced closure, developed and implemented a remote curriculum, supported our students to

return to school after the extended closure period, ensured in summer 2021our students were awarded grades

which reflected their ability and 97% students continued onto post 16 study of their choice.

71% of students achieved a standard pass in English and Maths

49% of students achieved a good pass in English and Maths
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SETTTEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Kev Financial Performance lndicators

Settlebeck School

Staffing costs as a % of total income (excludins caoital incomel

feachine staff

Support staff

fotal

Teachins Staff

Pupils on roll

Full time equivalents teachers

Pupil teacher ratio

2027 2020 2019 20L8 2077

196 199 L97 185 t7L

15 15 16 16 16

13.1 13.3 L2. 11.6 10.7

Goins Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust

has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it

adopts the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of

the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note ofthe financial statements.

Financial Review

Settlebeck School Academy Trust's financial statements are for the year ended 31 August 2021.

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant effect on the Trust's ability to Benerate additional income streams,

particularly from its catering provision, school lettings, fundraising and home to school transport arrangements.

However, the outturn for the year is significantly better than budget as losses were mitigated by additional

grant funding received as part of the government's support package for educational catch up and employer

costs.

The Academy Trust ends the year in a very strong financial position based on an increase in the net current

assets to f692,577 (2020: f545,050). Trustees are mindful of the impact of the increasing pension fund deficit

on future employer costs.

The majority of the academy's income is obtained from the Educational and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the
form of Srants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during

the year ended 31 Au8ust 2O2Land the related expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of
financial activities.

Under Financial Reporting Standard 102, it is necessary to charge projected deficits on the Local Government
Pension Scheme, which is provided to support staff, to a restricted fund. This results in reducing reserves shown
in the total funds of the academy. lt should be noted that this does not present the academy with any current
liquidity problem. The employer contributions are currently being assessed and it is expected that they will
increase to bring a reduction in this pension deficit in future, although this may not be achieved until stock
market investment values start to recover.

During the period ended 31 August 2021, total general expenditure of f1,729,o5l was covered by recurrent
grant funding from the DfE together with other incoming resources. The general income was f21g,1go more
than expenditure for the year.

At 31 August 2021 the net book value of fixed assets was E!,374,614 and movements in tangible fixed assets
are shown in the notes to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education
and the associated support services to the pupils ofthe Academy.

202L 2020 20L9 2018 20L7

57.8% 62.6% 60.4% 65.L% 6s.8%

L3.2% t3.9% L4.2% 16.9% L4.4%

7L.O% 755% 74.6% 82.O% 80.2%
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES.REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Financia! Review (Continuedl

COVID - 19 impact

Despite the upheaval caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, prudent spending and additional grant funding has

resulted in a significant increase in the year end surplus and a very healthy reserves level of f459,686.

Refurbishment work scheduled to take place over the summer break was severely hampered by a shortage of

materials, contractor availability and other refurbishment projects. Trustees recognise that this contributed

towards an increase in the level of reserves carried fonrvard and have agreed these funds will be drawn down in

the next financial year as the outstanding work is completed.

Staff employed in the organisation's catering provision were furloughed, where possible and the Coronavirus

Job Retention Scheme helped to mitigate the loss of income during periods of extended lockdown.

Education support grants received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency were used to support student

catch up sessions for lost learning, the implementation of additional health and safety measures in the school

and the mass testins of students and staff to reduce viral transmission.

Despite the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on income from catering provision and the home to school

transport arrangements, the trust remains a going concern.

Reserves Policv

The level of reserves held takes into account the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match

them with commitments, including future capital projects, and the nature of the reserves. The trustees will

keep the level of reserves under review.

The general unrestricted fund balance at the year end was 140,928 (2020: f40,899). The trustees believe that

this level of reserves is required to support the running of the school during the demographic dip.

The GAG fund balance at the year end was f428,75812020: f2L0,8231.

The Trust aspires to hold reserves in the region of one month of annual expenditure to ensure it is able to

produce a three year balanced budget, support a staffing model commensurate with curriculum requirements

and maintain the Trust as a going concern in the event of unforeseen events, such as a pandemic. Trustees

acknowledge that although the reserves level of f459,686 held at 31st August 2021 exceeds their expectations,

this provides the security required to improve the learning environment during the next financial year.

Funds in Deficit

The trustees note that certain restricted funds are in deficit which have been disclosed in the funds note

supporting the fi nancial statements.

Princioal Funding Sources

The main sources of income for the year were: The ESFA and the local authority.

lnvestment Policv

The financial position is constantly reviewed and monitored by the Finance & Buildings Committee together

with the Head Teacher. The main source of funding is from the GAG provided by the ESFA and the majority of

the expenditure has been on supporting the pupils of Settlebeck School through providing good teachers and

equipment to help them in their studies. Settlebeck School aims to keep reserves as high as possible to secure

the future of the academy and ensure pupils receive a good education in a small and friendly school' The

academy does not have any spare funds to invest, but may look further in the future if surplus funds are

available.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES.REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Financial risks and uncertainties are magnified by the size of our small Academy where a change in roll of only a

few pupils can make a large change to the balance sheet especially if those pupils carry extra costs or grants.

Government grants and policies often change at quite short notice, and this can affect budgeting considerably

eg the GAG and pupil premium. Currently changes in the funding formula have been proposed but the outcome

is not yet clear and may influence rural schools adversely. The new formula has been postponed to 2018. ln

general a falling population within the Academy's catchment also requires a significant input to marketing to

maintain our school roll.

Financial and Risk Manaeement Obiectives and Policies

A budget for the period was agreed prior to the beginning of the accounting period. Management accounts

were presented at each quarterly Finance, Property & Audit Committee trustee meeting and income and

expenditure monitored against budget. All the academy's financial policies, systems and controls are disclosed

in the academy's Financial Regulations Manual.

Risk Manasement

The governors have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to

the specific teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Academy, and its finances. The

Bovernors have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the school faces, especially in the

operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in relation to the

control of finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.9. vetting of new staff

and visitors, supervision of school grounds) and internal financial controls (see below) in order to minimise risk.

Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The

Academy has an effective system of internal flnancial controls and this is explained in more details in the

statement on internal control.

Fundraising

The academy does not engage with professional fundraisers to undertake any fundraising activities on its
behalf. The academy from time to time carries out minor level fundraising activities to raise funds for the

academy whereby students seek voluntary donations from parents and the local community.

Plans for Future Periods

' Continue to develop quality first teaching through investing in personal professional development for
staff, engaging with research, evidence-informed strategies and collaboration.

' Review and develop the curriculum to ensure that it meets the needs of our students and our local

community.

' Develop a diverse, rich curriculum which encourages our students to celebrate and value difference.

' Continue to focus on improving attendance, with a particular focus on disadvantaged and SEND

students.

' Evaluate the effectiveness of the PSHE and careers programme seeking to make improvements for our
students.

' Ensure that those with SEND have access to appropriately recognised qualifications and receive the high
quality of education they are entitled to.

. Review the structure of the curriculum to ensure it is 
,value for money'

. Continue to develop collaborative links with other schools to share good practice.

Page 9



SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES'REPORT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Auditor
ln so far as the trustees are aware:
. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

. the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Saint & Co Chartered Accountants were formally reappointed at the Multi Academy Trust's AGM held on 15

December 2021.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the members of the board of

trustees on 14 December 2027 and signed on its behalf by:

a

u^52-
Peter lrvine

Chair of Academy Trustees
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge that we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Settlebeck School Academy Trust

has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and othenrrise. However such a system is designed to

manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competenry

framework for governance.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the headteacher, as accounting officer, for

ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in

accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between the

Settlebeck School Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.

The Accounting Officer is also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or

breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on Bovernance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 4 times during the year 2O2Ol2l.

Out of necessity due to Covid-19 restrictions, most meetings have been virtual. Attendance during the year at

meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee

Myles Ripley

Peter lrvine

Jessica Oxley

Sarah Campbell

Catharine Driver

Sarah Evans

Matt Towe

Laura Reeves

Elizabeth Morgan

Sheila Capstick

Dorothy Blair

Lottie Tulloch

Thomas Robinson

Darren Mitchell-Whiteside

Governance Review

The key chonges in the composition of the boord of trustees

Resionations:

o Myles Ripley on 22109/2O2O (Chair of Trustees)

o Matthew Towe on 3L|L2/2O2O

o Lotte Tulloch on 3tlL2/2O2O

o Jessica Oxley on 3t/t3/Z12t (Staff Governor)

Aopointments

o Peter lrvine on 2210912020 (Chair of Trustees)

o Dorothy Blair on 2Z/O9|2O2O

o Lotte Tulloch on 22/09/2020

o Thomas Robinson on t6/O3/2O2t

o Darren Mitchell-Whiteside on ZtlOg/ZO2L

Meetings Attended Out of a Possible

7

4

2

4

4

4

1

3

4

4

1

1

2

0

L

4

3

4

4

4

2

4

4

4

4

2

2

0
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Governance Review (conti n ued )

Coveroge of work

ln accordance with Department for Education's requirements for all Trust Boards, the three strategic functions of

the Settlebeck School Academy Trust board are:

. ensuring clarity of vision, ethos, and strategic direction

. holding the Academy Headteacher and school leadership to account for the educational performance of its pupils

and the performance management of all members of staff

o overseeing the financial performance of the school and making sure its money is well spent and within the agreed

spending levels and the academy business is always'value for money'

The Board usually meets each term, but with an additional meeting at the beginning of the Autumn Term to deal

with the formalities required each year (e.g., appointments to committees). The Board has established four

committees. These are, Finance Buildings and Resources (including Audit and Risk), Curriculum and Progress, Health

and Safety and Pay and Appraisal Committees. Each committee normally meets once a term and consists of trustees

appointed by the Board. Each committee has delegated authority to deal with matters within its terms of reference,

but the Board can review and comment on those decisions. The board meets on a regular basis to support the life

and work of the school, taking information from the sub-committees who have clearly defined delegated powers,

and reviewing the work undertaken by them on the board's behalf. As well as complying with their defined role,

trustees have acted effectively both corporately and individually to monitor, challenge and support the school.

Boo rds pe rformo n ce/effedive ne ss o n d ch o I le nges

The Board has discharged it responsibilities, through board meetings and sub-committee meetings, to monitor and

challenge the functions of the school and particularly its leadership. The resignation of several trustees, including

the Chair (from September 2020) has presented several challenges given the pandemic situation, however new

trustees have taken up post and we are continually seeking additions with the skill sets necessary to continue the

board development. The Board of Trustees ensure members of the board, fully question and challenge data and

finances, seek clarification where necessary and look at issues with insight and perception.

Financially the pandemic has brought additional challenges for the school, but this has been monitored closely

throughout the year with regular oversight of management accounts by the Trust Board and Finance, Building and

Resources Committee, ensuring that trustees offer the level of scrutiny necessary. The efforts and controls

implemented throughout the year by our Chief Financial and Accounting Officers have proved to be successful, as

evidenced in the positive financial outturn.

The Trust Board will continue to develop strategically and work towards the longer-term plan of the Academy, to

closely monitor the Academy's financial status and work closely with the Accounting Officer and Chief Financial

Officer.

The Trust Board also considered future funding forecasts and agreed the school budget for 2O2L/22, and will ensure

that the financial strategy is integrated with the school's strategy for raising standards and attainment.
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SETTTEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Governance Review (co nti n ued )

Quolity of Doto mode ovailoble

Trustees receive detailed management accounts and have the opportunity to challenge and seek further

clarification over spending at each board meeting and sub-committee meeting. Accounts are presented in an

accessible format, allowing trustees the level of scrutiny required.

The Finance, Buildings & Resource Committee is a sub-committee of the Trust Board. lts purpose is to provide

assurance over the suitability of, and competence with its financial and non-financial systems, operational controls

and personnel to ensure that risks are identified and managed. Through robust governance arrangements the Trust

seeks to maximise outcomes for pupils through the effective use of resources. During the year Elizabeth Morgan, a

lawyer, and Thomas Robinson, an economics and business teacher, joined the committee. Attendance at meetings

during the year was as follows:

Trustee

Sarah Campbell

Laura Reeves

Peter lrvine

Catharine Driver

Lotte Tulloch

Elizabeth Morgan

Tom Robinson

Meetings Attended Out of a Possible

3

3

3

3

1

2

1

3

L

3

2

0

2

0

Due to the size of the academy trust, the audit and risk management functions are included within the terms of

reference for the Finance, Buildings & Resource Committee. The remit of the committee is to direct the trust's

programme of internal scrutiny, ensure risks are being addressed appropriately, and to report to the board on the

adequary of the trust's internal control framework, including financial and non-financial controls and management

of risk. To comply with the requirements in the Academy Trust Handbook, the work of the committee related to

audit and risk is chaired separately to avoid conflict with the role of chair of the trust board, and employees are not

able to participate as members when audit matters are discussed.

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in

the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and

wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each

academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value
for money during the year by:

. Regularly reviewing the staffing structure

' Collaboration with the South Lakes Federation and the Cumbrian Association of System Leaders
. Using a number of approved suppliers in order to obtain the best price
o Obtaining several quotations for utility contracts and comparing contract lengths in order to secure the best

deals.

The Trust has acted to support suppliers during the pandemic, where possible, in order to ensure continuity of
service after periods of extended lockdown. An example of this level of support includes the continuation of the
home to school transport contract which was greatly reduced between January and March 2021, when only
vulnerable students and those whose parents were key workers travelled daily into school. Trustees agreed to
provide a partial refund against the annual cost of a bus pass for those parents whose children were unable to
attend face-to-face lessons between January and March 2021. This adversely impacted on value for money of the
home to school transport contract.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Governance Review (conti nued )

COVID - 19 impact

It is envisaged that Covid-19 will present further challenges during,2O2L{2O22, the board will continue to challenge

and give the necessary support when other situations probably develop in the coming months, our school

leadership team is strong and reacts speedily and effectively as and when any new occurrence presents itself both

on the financial and educational fronts.

Trustees have made the conscious decision to return to face-to-face meetings for 2O2L12O22, which in their opinion

provides a much more cohesive method of engagement to discuss/challenge all aspects of their responsibilities on

all issues.

The Finance, Building & Resources Committee, with delegated responsibility for audit and risk, oversee and approve

the Academy's programme of internal scrutiny. The Committee scrutinised the adequacy of the Academy's internal

control framework, which includes financial and non-financial controls and management of risks. The Risk

Management report and analysis is submitted to the board and the Finance, Buildings & Resource Committee at

each of their termly meetings, coupled with this, reviews of systems in place for varying control measures are where

necessary implemented, to satisfy the needs of the school operation and fiscal controls and to ensure that we can

where it is practicable and manageable, mitigate the liability of the potential unforeseen circumstance that may

occur in future months, not exclusively, but especially surrounding the Covid-19 situation.

Educationally, the pandemic has given rise to the alterations required of teaching methods during lockdown and the

consequent reconnection for pupils and staff upon the return in March 2021 to face to face engagement.

Throughout the year at both board and the Curriculum and Progress Committee meetings comprehensive reportinB

has been provided so that the necessary challenge and support can be made by trustees towards assisting the

headteacher and senior leadership team and in providing the necessary resources to where required ensuring pupil

learning experience is at a point that is expected. The wellbeing of staff and pupils across the whole school is also

considered by the board to be of paramount importance.

The Purpose of the System of lnterna! Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of

failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise

the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks

being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in Settlebeck School Academy Trust for the period 01 September

2020 to 31 August 2O2Land up to the date of approval ofthe annual report and financial statements'

capacity to Handle Risk

The trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating, financial

and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The trustees are of the view that there

is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has

been in place for the period 01 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual

report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Trustees.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021,

The Risk and Control Framework

The academy trusfs system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and

accountability. ln particular, it includes:

. Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which

are reviewed and agreed by the board oftrustees;
. Regular reviews by the Finance, Buildings and Resourse Committee of reports which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

r SettinS targets to measure financial and other performance;

e Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
. Dele8ation of authority and segregation of duties;
o ldentification and management of risks.

lnternal Scrutiny

The board of trustees are aware of the revised FRC Ethical Standard for auditors which states that a firm providing

external audit to an entity shall not also provide internal audit services to it. They have therefore considered the

need for a specific internal audit function and appointed an internal auditor to scrutinise and report on the systems

of financial control for the year ended 31 August 2021.

ln addition, internal scrutiny of risk management and non-financial controls was delivered via a peer review by the

chief financial officer from another academy trust. The Trust appointed Sally McAllister, Chief Financial Officer of
Kirkby Stephen Academy Trust to conduct the review, based on her independence from the Trust and experience.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
academy trust's financial systems. ln particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

o testinS of payroll systems;

o testinB of purchases systems;
. testinB of bank reconciliations

On a termly basis, the auditor reports to the board of trustees on the operation of the systems of control and on the
discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibilities.

The board of trustees confirm that the auditor has worked with the Trust to deliver their schedule of work despite
the issues arising from the Covid-19 pandemic.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 3l AUGUST 2O2I

Review of Effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Head has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.

During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. The work of the peer reviewer and subsequent reports on risk management and non-financial controls

r The work ofthe internal auditor and subsequent reports on financial controls

. The work of the external auditor

. The financial management and governance self-assessment process

. The work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development

and maintenance of the internal control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

control by the Resources Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the

system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 15 December 202L and signed on its behalf by:

Accounting Officer
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT ON REGUIARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPTIANCE

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

As accounting officer of Settlebeck School Academy Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust

board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-

compliance with terms and conditions of funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreement in place

between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to

the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that I and the Trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all

funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding

agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to

date. lf any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees

and ESFA.

Sarah Campbell

(Accounting Officer)

{l*:t%u Date
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The trustees (who act as governors of Settlebeck School Academy Trust and are also the directors of the charitable

company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial

statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,

United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law

and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the

trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including

its income and expenditure, for that period. ln preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

r select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to

202L

a

a

make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the

charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the

charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2005.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe charitable company and hence for taking reasonable

steps for the prevention and detection offraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial

and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management.

They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included

on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and

dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees and signed on its behalf by:

-R,.r*s-
Peter lrvine

Chair of Academy Trustees

t.1,. .>-- J I Date
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SETTTEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Settlebeck School Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2021 which

comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been

applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice).

ln our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2O2L and of its incoming

resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

. have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and
o have been properly prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2020

to2021-.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (lSAs (UK)) and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audito/s responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical

Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relatint to going concern

ln auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting

in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or

conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Settlebeck School Academy Trust's ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12 months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant

sections of this report.

(Xher information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. lt includes the Reference and
Administrative Details, the Report of the Directors and Strategic Report and the Governance Statement. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf we identifo such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. lf, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST

!NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST (continued)

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are

prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

o the Report of the Trustees have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

ln the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course

of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us

to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from

branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of the

charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements

and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is

necessary to enable to preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern

basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibililies for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the lndependent Auditors that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a Suarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST (continued)

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line

with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with

laws and regulations, is detailed below:

o the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,

capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

. we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and other

managemenU

r we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the financial

statements or the operations of the company;

. we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of

management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

. identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert

to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an

understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

. making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge

of actual, suspected and alleged fraud;

o To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
. performed analfical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
. tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;
o assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out

in the accounting policies were indicative of potential bias; and

r investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

ln response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which

included, but were not limited to:

. agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

. reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
r enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and regulations
are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance. Auditing standards
also limit the audit procedures required to identifli non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the
directors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may
involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of
lndependent Auditors.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR.S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SETTTEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST (continued)

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of

the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's

members those matters we are required to state to them in an audito/s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest

extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and

the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

For and on behalfof

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

The Old Police Station

Church Street

Ambleside

Cumbria

LA22 OBT

t *. 
$eru**tr*r...M..... 

o 

"r"

ttle (Senior Statutory Auditor)
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SETTTEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSUMNCE REPORT ON REGUIARITY TO THE

SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILTS FUNDING AGENCY

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ln accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 21 June 2018 and further to the requirements of the

Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021, we have

carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received

by Settlebeck School Academy Trust during the period 01 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Respective Responsibilities of the Settlebeck Schoo! Academy Trust's Accounting Officer and the Reporting

Accountant
The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirement of the Settlebeck School Academy Trust's funding

agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 29 July 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant

from 1 September 2O2O, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes

intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and

are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the

Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying

out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period

01 September 2O2Oto 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial

transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting

Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA . We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our

enBaBement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and

explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently

does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

' the school resource management self-assessment checklist (SRMSAT) was obtained and considered;
t responses to the top 10 'musts'for chairs and other trustees from the AFH was obtained and considered;

' having a general awareness of regularity and propriety whilst conducting the statutory audit function;

' reviewing if extra-contractual severance payments have been made in accordance with the Handbook;

' reviewing if borrowing a8reements, including leases to ensure they have been made in accordance with the
Handbook;

. reviewing the minutes of the meeting of the main committees during the year;

' reviewing expenditure to check that it was not ultra vires to the charitable objectives;
o obtaining trustee / governors declaration of interests;
. where present obtaining the accounting officer's file.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGUIARIW TO THE

SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKIttS FUNDING AGENCY

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Conclusion

ln the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the

expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 01 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to Settlebeck School Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our

engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Settlebeck School Academy Trust and ESFA

those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we

do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Settlebeck School Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work,

for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

The Old Police Station

Church Street

Ambleside

Cumbria

IA22 OBT

t*fr*xro.zt**t...'.fu2t...r,*"
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCTAI ACTIVITTES (INCORPORATING THE TNCOME AND EXPENDTTURE ACCOUNT)

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Choritoble activities :

- Funding for the academy trust's 3 28,430 7,875,t46 - 1,903,576 1,786,667

educational operations

Other trading activities

lnvestment income

Total

Expenditure on:

Raising funds

lncome and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants

Tota!

Net income / (expenditure)

before transfers

Transfers between funds

Net lncome/(expenditure) for the year

Other recognised gains / (losses)

Actuarial (losses) gains on defined benefit
pension scheme

Net movement in funds

Reconcillation of funds

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Year Year

Funds General Fixed Asset Ended Ended

Funds Funds 31 Aug 21 31 Aug 20

NoteEfCt€

2 - 4,830 228,908 233,738 529,692

4 38,807 38,807 30,133

518--1829
67,255 !,879,976 228,908 2,176,t39 2,145,52t

-

7 38,807 38,807 27,881

6 87,L36 1,64L,9!5 M9,247 2,779,292 2,399,243

-

(19,881) 238,061 (220,333) (2,153) (52,7221

10 19,910 (56,096) 36,186

Choritoble octivities :

- Academy trust educational operations I 48,329 7,64L,915 449,241 2,L39,48s 2,370,362

29 181,965 (L84,7471 (2,153) 1s2,722l.

Total funds brought fonvard at 01 September 20 40,899 l766,t2sl 1,62t,478 goz,2sz gz4,g74

Total funds carried

forward at 31 August 2021 40,928 (669,150) 1,443,331 815,099 902,252

16/20 - (85,000) - (es,ooO) 3o,ooo

29 96,96s (184,1,471 (87,1s3) (.22,722l.

All of the academy's activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods.

A Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses is not required as all the gains and losses are included in the Statement of
Financial Activities.
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Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

tiabilities

Creditors: amount falling due within one year

SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

BAIANCE SHEET

31 AUGUST 2021
2021

EC

t,374,6L4

715

!36,U2
725,359

862,LL6

(169,599)

Note

11

L2

13

2020

ff

1,436,333

2L5

68/,t4t
298,265

982,62L

1437,57L1

Net current assets

Total Assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amount falling due after more than one year 15

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 20

Tota! Net Assets

Funds of the academy trust :

Restricted funds

Fixed asset funds

General funds

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

General funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

15

16

16

15

16

692,5L7

2,067,L3L

(81,032)

1,985,099

(1,171,000)

815,099

t,443,33L

501,840

(1,171,000)

774,L7L

40,928

40,928

545,050

1,981,383

(56,131)

L,925,252

(1,023,000)

902,252

t,627,478

256,875

(1,023,000)

851,353

40,899

40,899

902,252815,099

The financial statements were approved by the governors, and authorised for issue on 14 December ZOZL and signed

on their behalf by:

-Rt;Peter lrvine (Chair ofTrustees)

Company Registration Number: 076937 15
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASHFTOWS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Reconciliation of net income / (expenditure) to net cashflow from operating activities

Net income / (expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial

activities)

Adjusted for:
lnterest receivable

Loss on disposal offixed assets

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfEIESFA

Other capital funding received

Decrease/(increase) in stocks

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

lncrease/(decrease) in creditors

lncrease/(decrease) in creditors over one year

Decrease/(increase) in Salix loans included in above

Defined benefit pension scheme costs less contributions payable.

Defined benefit pension scheme net finance costs

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

Cashflows from investing activities

Receipts from sale oftangible fixed assets

Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets

Other capital funding received

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA

lnterest received

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities

Cashflows from financing activities

Receipts from Salix loans

Repayments made on Salix loans

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

lncrease / (Decrease) in cash in the year

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
lncrease/(decrease) in cash in the period

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2020

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2021

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 1 Sep 2020

€

299,265

299,265

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash

Loans falling due within one year

Loans falling due after more than a year

Finance lease obligations

Total

I Sep 20 Cash flows New

(2,153)

(18)

65,504

(228,908)

(4,830)

(soo)

54g,0gg

1267,9721

24,907

124,907l.

43,000

20,000

L73,222

Year

Ended

31 Aug 21

E

228,97L

24,g0t

152,722)

lzsl

66,497

(524,503)

(4,189)

(333,039)

L44,8L0

32,256

(32,131)

57,000

19,000

(627,050l.

Year

Ended

31 Aug 20

f

4,789

524,503

29

528,727

33,131

(1,000)

32,L3L

f€
298,265 427,094

(1,000) 1,000

14,7851

4,930

228,909

18

25,901

(1,000)

agreement

(25,901)

427,O94

427,094

299,265

725,359

Cash flows

f
427,094

427,O94

Other non-

cash

f

(1,000)

1,000

(65,198)

(65,198)

364,463

299,265

31 Aug

2021
f

725,359

725,359

31 Aug 21

f
725,359

(1,000)

(81,032)

241,134

-

428,094 (rtgoli 

- 

@
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SETTTEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Statement of Accountant Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),

judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared

under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and

Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice

applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the

UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2O2O to 2OZt

issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currenry of the entity.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going

concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation

for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue

in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's

ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in

preparing the financial statements.

lncoming resources

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable

and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants receivable

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received

for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.

Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional

entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the

performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is

accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is

receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of

capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised

when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the

receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured'

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the

academy trust has provided the goods or services'
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1. Statement of Accountint Policies (Continued)

Donated goods, facilities and services

Donated goods, facilities and services. Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected

proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale. lf it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is

recognised in stock and 'lncome from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against

'lncome from other trading activities' and the proceeds are recognised as 'lncome from other trading activities'.

Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the

financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'lncome from other trading activities'.

Donated flxed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this

reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from

donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over

the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Deferred income

Grants and other funding received for the Academy's educational activities for a period spanning the year end are

deferred pro-rata to the relevant periods in order to match the funding to the period in which the costs of charitable

activities are incurred.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third

party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the

obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the

total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs

attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one

activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on

a basis consistent with the use of resources.

Expenditure on Raising Funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes

costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating
to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are exclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Statement of Accounting Policies lContinuedl

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets transferred on conversion to Academy status have been included in the accounts at valuation.

Tangible fixed assets since the Academy was established are included in the accounts at cost, net of depreciation and

any provision for impairment.

Single assets costing less than f1,000 or similar groups of assets purchased or ordered together of less than f 1,000

are written off in the year of purchase.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from

the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful

economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset,

the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried

forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund

in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds,

depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value, over the useful

economic life of that asset as follows:

Freehold buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture and equipment

ICT equipment

Motor vehicles

- straight line over the estimated economic life (23 to 50 years)

- straight line over the estimated economic life (15 years)

- 10% straight line

- 33% straight line

- 20% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are

brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their

recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial

Activities.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The total depreciation charge is allocated to direct costs and support costs pro-rata to the number of employees.

A full years depreciation is charged in the year of purchase and no charge is made in the year of disposal'
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is

probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be

estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the

debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Public Benefit Entity Concessionary Loans

Public benefit entity concessionary loans shall initially be measured at the amount received and recognised in the

statement of financial position. ln subsequent years, the carrying amount of concessionary loans in the financial

statements shall be adjusted to reflect any accrued interest payable.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event

which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of

the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the

pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within

interest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership remain with the

lessor are charged against profits on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Financial lnstruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial

liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Finonciol ossets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at

amortised cost as detailed in the notes. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Finonciol liobilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at

amortised cost as detailed in the notes. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments

disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already
taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowance for obsolete and slow
moving items.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule G of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK taxation purposes.

Accordingly the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by chapter 3 Part 11 ofthe corporation Tax Act 2o1o or Section 256 ofthe Taxation of
chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Statement of Accounting Policies lContinuedl

Pensions Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS') and

the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes, and the assets are held

separately from those of the academy trust.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over

employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level

percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary

on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer

scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined

contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in

separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured

on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate

of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations

are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net

income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,

settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined

benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the

defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the

scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference

between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other

recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted funds reflect those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the objects of the Academy at

the discretion ofthe trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds reflect the fixed assets and capital grants for the purchase of fixed assets to be used for

charitable purposes.

Restricted general funds comprise grants, including the General Annual Grant (GAG), and other funding for

educational purposes and any voluntary income to be used for specific purposes.

The Local Government pension Scheme deficit is recognised against restricted general funds in order to match it

against the GAG, in accordance with ESFA guidance.

Details of restricted and unrestricted funds are shown in the notes to the financial statements.
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YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Statement of Accounting Policies lContinuedl

Critical accounting estamates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Criticol occounting estimotes, ossumptions ond judgements

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and

assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

. The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of

factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in

determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,

which are disclosed in notes, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward

approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been

used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures

derived from the roll fonvard approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the
pension liability.

o The annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful economic lives of property. The useful

economic lives of property, plant and equipment is initially based on the professional valuers report using their
judgement and experience. The useful economic lives are assessed annually and changed when necessary to
reflect current thinking on their remaining lives.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

2. Donations and capital grants

EFA Capital grants

Other donations

2020 total

3. Funding for Academy's educational operations

DfE / ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DfE / ESFA grants

Pupil Premium

Teachers pay grant

Teachers pension grant

Other DfE / ESFA grants

Other Government grants

Local Authority Funded Statements

Other Local Authority Grants

Exceptional government funding

COVID-19 additional funding (ESFA/DfE)

Catchup premium

Coronavirus exceptional support

COVID-19 additional funding (non - ESFA/DfE)

Mass testing funding

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant

School Fund lncome

Catering

Other Educational Operations

Educational Activities and Visits

Other

2020 total

Exceptiona! government funding

Year

Unrestricted Restricted Ended

Funds Funds 31 Aug 21

C€G
- 228,908 228,908

Year

Ended

31 Aug 20

€

524,503

4,830 4,830 4,t89
233,738 233,738 528,592

528,692 528,692

Unrestricted

Funds

C

Restricted

Funds

f
t,324,5L9

26,59t

13,500

45,474

tL,29L

360,435

8,890

L7,O40

19,140

5,195

25,640

Year

Ended

31 Aug 21

€

L,324,5L9

26,59L

13,600

45,474

LL,297

350,435

8,890

L7,O4O

19,140

5,195

25,640

27,239

t,337

27,23g

t,tgt ,i:,ll!

Year

Ended

31 Aug 20

E

L,289,L99

3L,920

73,652

45,62L

8,139

299,493

3,779

B,AAt
18,563

31,659

L6,794

L7,tU L4,O07

28,430 L,875,L46 1,903,576 L,786,667

35,085 1,75L,582 L,786,667

The ocodemy trust hos been eligible to cloim odditionol funding in year from government support schemes in

response to the coronovirus outbreak. The funding received is shown obove under'exceptionol government

funding".
The academy received {.L7,O4O of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of this funding are

shown in the funds note.

The academy received f19,140 of funding for the mass testing of staff and students and costs incurred in respect

of this funding are shown in the funds note.

The academy furloughed some of its catering staff under the government's ORS. The funding received relates to

staff costs in respect of 3 members of staff which are included within the wages note.
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOL ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3l AUGUST 2021.

4. (Xher trading activities

Hire of facilities and utility recharges

Service Provision

RPA insurance claims

2020 total

5. lnvestment lncome

Bank lnterest Receivable

2020 total

Unrestricted

Funds

f
27,902

16,905

- 2L,gO2

- 16,905

Year Year

Restristed Ended Ended

Funds 31 Aug 21 31 Aug 20

f€f
10,255

77,626

2,252
38,807 38,807 30,133

29

2929

27,88! 2,252 30,1*I

Unrestricted

Funds

f
18

Restristed

Funds

f

Year Year

Ended Ended

31Aug21 31Aug20
Cf

18 29
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SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

6. Expenditure

Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Educational activities

and school fund costs

Non Pay Expenditure

Premises Other Costs

€E

Expenditure on raising funds L2,774 2LP02 4,t3L 38,807

Academy's educational operations

Staff

Costs

e.

48,052 7,!97,827

515,019 938,976

- 2,682 2,682

Year Year

Ended Ended

31 Aug 21 31 Aug 20

fE

27,88L

L,2t6,O42

L,!36,2r9

18,101

1,118,843

253,2M

30,932

L70,7t3

L,372,O87 20t,645 555,753 2,t39,485 2,370,362

1,384,861 221,547 559,884 2,178,292 2,398,243

2020 total 1,395,823 204,010 797,4LO 2,398,243

lncoming/outgoing resources for the period

This is stated after charging:

Depreciation

Loss on disposal offixed assets

Operating leases

Fees payable to auditor - audit of the financial statements

- other assurance services

- other services

7. Expenditure on raising funds

Unrestricted Restricted

Funds Funds

€€

78,68L 85,723

Year Year

Ended Ended

31 Aug 21 31 Aug 20

€C

Year Year

Ended Ended

31 Aug 21 31 Aug 20

ef.
55,504 66,497

5,L87 9,L4L

6,520 6,350

470_ 
',f;3

5,035

6,738_

2L,902

4,L3L

697

to,496

10,255

5,433

Teaching and educational support staff

Support staff costs

Maintenance of premises and equipment

Rent and rates

Heat and light

Catering

Printing, postage, stationery & photocopying

Advertising

Fund Raising Expenses

Other support costs

2020 total

5,036

6,738

2L,902

4,13L

38,807 38,807 27,88L

27,88L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

8. CharitableActivities

Darect costs - educational operations

Teaching and educational support staff

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Books, apparatus and stationery

Staff development

Examination fees

Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Allocated support costs - educational operations

Support staff costs

Depreciation

Loss on disposal offixed assets

Recruitment and support

Maintenance of premises and equipment

Condition improvement fu nd expenditure

Legal and Professional

Cleaning

Rent and rates

Heat and light

lnsurance

Transport

Catering

Printing, postage, stationery & photocopying

Advertising

Telephone

Bank charges

Technology and licence fee costs

Other support costs

Educationa! activities and school fund costs

Educational activities

Educational activities staff costs

School Fund expenditure

Support costs - governance

Professional fees

Legal fees

Support staff costs

Net finance costs in respect of
defined benefit pension schemes

Audit fees

Accountancy and assurance fees

Total direct and support costs

2020 total

Unrestricted Restracted

Funds Funds

ff
- 1,119,943

- 30,932

26,975

7,LgO

13,957_

29,446

3,935

72,735

4,452

L,L97,827 L,197,827 L,2r6,O42

Year Year

Ended Ended

31 Aug 21 31 Aug 20

EC.
I,1L8,843 L,L40,OO7

30,932 25,467

26,gLs

7,L80

73,957

32,434 277,918

-_ 35,572

_ 2,599

- 33,398

- 375,4L3

- 34,639

- 6,t66
- 79,072

- 39,L04

- 3,762
- 23,4L4

t4,7L6 1,635
_ 1,000
_ 969

- 2,924

- 327

- 50,533

250,352

35,572

2,688

33,398

375,4L3

34,639

6,166

L8,O72

39,LO4

3,762

23,4L4

16,351

1,337

t,326 1,326

5,900 5,900

2,892 2,992

20,000 20,000

6,520 6,520

242,235

41,030

3,531

30,97L

593,848

M,778
3,370

L4,t7L

29,542

4,426

27,423

21,606

1,000 1,000

969 2,4LO

2,924 3,080

327 634

50,633 29,032

7,L79 4,325 5,504

48,329 g51,g5g g00,2gg 1,091,094

3,897

L,337 16,794

1,345 1,345 L,3O7

2,692 2,692 19,101

1,883

10,779

3,399

19,000

6,360

2,050 z,o5o 3,725
38,588 38,588 45,135

49,329 2,091,156 2,739,495 237W62

-- 

_
45,720 2,324,642 2.370.362
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

9. Staffcosts

Staff costs during the period were:

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes

Apprentership levy

Supply staff costs

Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundanry payments

Severance payments

Other restructuring costs

Teachers

Administration and support

Management

Year

Ended

31 Aug 21

C

999,9L7

82,929

280,545

Year

Ended

31 Aug 20

€

1,006,390

80,705

284,265

1,363,391

2L,470

1,384,861

7,37L,360

77,47O

7,993

1,396,823

7,993

7,993

Non statutory/non{ontractual staff severance payments

lncluded in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory / non-contractual severance payments totalling fnil (2020:

f7,993). lndividually, the payments were fnil (2020: €1,500 and f5,493).

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the period was as follows:

202L

No

2020

No

L7

23

3

15

29

3

4743

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employers pension costs) exceeded f50,000 was:

f50,001 - 870,000

2021 2020

No No

7

Key management personne!

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as

listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by

key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was f 194,951 l2O2O: f212,O79l..
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10. Fund Transfers

During the period the following transfers were made between funds:

Unrestricted funds

Transfer to unrestricted catering fund from the General Annual Grant restricted general 19,910

fund to cover the ovespend in the current period on the provision of catering to the

acadamies pupils.

19,910

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant

School contribution for Salix loan on electrical re-wire project (2)

School contribution to CIF - security fencing project

Fixed assets used for charitable purposes - purchases from GAG

Transfer from the General Annual Grant restricted general fund to the

unrestricted catering fund to cover the ovespend in the current period

on the orovision of caterine to the acadamies pupils.

(25,901)

(5,500)

{(4,785l.

(19,910)

Restricted fixed asset funds

Fixed assets used for charitable purposes - purchases from GAG

School contribution for Salix loan on electrical re-wire project (2)

School contribution to CIF - security fencing project

4,785

(s6,096)

(56,096)

4,795

25,901

5,500
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

11. Tangible Fixed Assets

Cost

As at 01 September 2020

Additions

Disposals

As at 31 August 2021

Depreciation

As at 01 September 2020

Disposals

Charge in year

As at 31 August 2021

Net book value

As at 31 August 2021

As at 31 August 2020

352,306

38,786

391,092

247,422

27,239

274,667

s2,239

52,239

2,L26,565

685,447

66,504

?5r"951

Freehold

tand &
Buildings

f
1,627,464

Plant &
Machinery

C

408,597

Furniture &
Equipment

€

25,980

4,795

Motor
Vehicles

f
7,500

tcT

Equipment

E.

s2,239_

Tota!

E

2,L21,78O

4,785

t,627,4il 408,597 30,765 7,500

7,500

26,459 7,500 52,239

7.,236,372 133,936 +306 1,374,614

t,275,158 767,175 1,436,333

Valuation Details

lncluded within freehold buildings and plant and machinery are the following assets which were transferred on conversion

to an academy. The freehold buildings, integral features and the plant and machinery were valued at 'build costs' of

f4,302,142, f653,760 and 8276,629 respectively on 19 July 2011 by Gary A Bushell, FRICS, AMAE of Bushell Raven Limited

who is independent of the charitable company.

The valuation by Gary A Bushell was based on the estimated rebuild costs, which the trustees have amended downwards

to get to the Existing Use Value using a depreciated replacement cost approach. Under this approach the buildings were

valued at 81,451,684 at the date of conversion and integral features and plant and machinery at a combined value of

f.408,597 at the date of conversion.

The freehold land was valued by the governors after obtaining the developed and undeveloped land acreage from Harrison

Pitt Architects and then applying a market rate per acre each portion of the land.

Treatment of Condition lmprovement Proiects

During the year the academy completed a roof coverings, electrical re-wire phase 1 and replacement of central heating

projects and started an electrical re-wire phase 2 and security fencing projects which were funded by ESFA Condition

lmprovement Fund grants. The full cost ofthese projects have been treated as resources expended in the Statement of

Financial Activities.

25,980

479
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12. Stock

Catering

Other

13. Debtors

Trade debtors

Taxation and social security

VAT recoverable

Prepayments

Accrued income

Other debtors

2021

f
2L5

s00

2020

f
275

7L5 215

2021

t
6,262

1,263

40,854

L6,192

7L,47L

2020

€

21,3L8

222,695

9,088

43t,O40

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Taxation and social security

Sundry creditors

Accruals

Salix Loans

Deferred income

Pension scheme creditor

Deferred income

Deferred income at 01 September 2020

Resources deferred in the year

Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2021

Deferred income comprises:

School income for future trips

Bus Passes for the next academic year

LA funded statements for September to March in the next financial year

lncluded within creditors are Salix loans from the ESFA.

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Salix Loans

736,042 684,L4t

2020

f
309,737

L,t25

503

L00,478

1,000

24,728

2021

f
44,952

97,685

1,000

25,962

169,5gg

2021

€

24,728

25,962

|.24,728l,

25,962

9,339

L,447

15,183

25,962

437,57L

2020

€

165,458

24,728

(155,458)

24,728

10,820

942

t2,966

24,728

2021

f
2020

f
91,032 56,131

8L,O32 55,131

salix loans are public benefit concessionary loans which are repayable over 8 years from commencement and are
interest free.
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SETTTEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

16. Funds

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds

Fixed Assets used for

Charitable purposes

ESFA formula capital fund

ESFA condition improvement fund

Renewal of central heating

Electrical re-wiring

Roof refurbishment

Electrical re-wiring (2)

Security fencing

Restricted General Funds

DIE / ESFA Revenue Gronts

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium

Teachers pay grant

Teachers pension grant

Other DfE/ESFA Grants

Catch-up premium

Other Government Gronts

Balance at lncoming

01-Sep resources

2020

CC

L,436,333

- 7,324

137,795

52,795

1,155

- L74,O79
_ 47,505

L,627,478 228,908

2LO,823 7,324,5L9

- 26,59L

- 13,500

- 45,474

- 7L,29L

- 77,040

360,436

8,890

24,335

25,54O

Resources

erpended

C

(66,s04)

17,3241

(137,195)

(52,795)

(1,155)

'L62,9421

(1,050,488) (55,096)

(26,591)

(13,500)

145,474t.

(t7,29L1

(14,305)

(350,436)

(8,890)

.24,3351

(1,345)

Gains, Losses Balance at

and Transferc 31-Aug

2021

f€

4,785 L,374,6L4

25,901 37,038

(27,3261 5,500 3L,679

1449,24L1 35,186 t,443,33L

428,758

2,735

7O,347

Other Educotionol Operotions

Educational Activities and Visits - L,337 (1,337)

256,875 L,879,976 (1,578,915) (56,095) 501,840

Restricted Pension Reserve Funds

Pension reserve (1,023,000) (63,000) (85,000) (1,171,000)

Local Authority Funded Statementt

Other Local Authority Grants

Exceptional government funding

School Funds 46,052

Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted Funds

General U nrestricted Funds

Catering Fund

Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

40,899

@ L,8?9,9?6 1164r"11, -1141^096) (669Joo)

40,899 40,928

z,2s2 z,no,rn @ 
-i8s^oooi 

815.099

40,015

27,239

67,255

(39,987)

(47,1,491 19,910

(87,135) 19,910 40,928

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the

amount of GAG that it could carry fonuard at 31 August 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

16. Funds lconttnuedl

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG) fund

This represents the core funding for the educational activities of the school that has been provided to the academy

via the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Pupil Premium

This represents funding paid by the DfE to support disadvantaged students in their teaching and learning, with the
aim of improving their attainment and closing the gap with their less disadvantaged peers.

Teachers pay and pension grants

Teachers pay Srant is provided to support teacher pay awards. Teachers pension grant is provided to support the
increase in employer contributions to the Teachers' Pension Scheme from September 2019.

Catch up premium

This represents funding paid by the DfE to support pupils and disadvantaged young people catch up on missed

education because of coronavirus (COVID-19)

LA Funded Statements

This represents funding paid by Cumbria County Council to support a continuum of provision for students with
special educational needs (SEN), learning difficulties and disabilities.

School Funds

This represents restricted contributions to be extended on specific projects, activities and materials for the benefit
of the pupils.

Educational Activities and visits

This represents mainly parental contributions. Voluntary income and educational income to be expended on

specific projects, activities and materials for the benefit of the pupils.

Catering

This represents funding relating to the provision of school meals for students and staff.

Defined benefit pension scheme fund

This represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) at the year end. For details of the
deficit payment plan see the pensions note.

Fixed assets used for charitable purposes

This represents the value and movements on Tangible Fixed Assets note.

Funds in Deficit

Pension Reserve Fund - this fund represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGpS) at the year
end' The Academy has entered into an agreement effective from 1 April 2020 to make additional contributions in
addition to normal funding levels. lt is anticipated that the payments will be made over 13 years from L AprilZO20,
including f25,300 for 2020121, f25,9OO in ZO2t/22 and f26,500 in 2OZZI23.
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16. Funds lcontinuedl

Comparative information in respect of the preceeding period is as follows:

Funds Balance at Incoming

01-Sep resources

2019

€€

1,502,830

- 7,324

- 335,755

- t8t,424
203,372

74,849 
_

Resources Gains, Losses Balance at

expended and Transfers 31-Aug

2020

cf€

166,4971

(7,3241

1225,8O7)

(149,613)

|.202,217)

.14,8491

27,247

20,984

L,436,333

t37,L95

52,795

1,155

Restricted Fired Asset Funds

Fixed Assets used for

Charitable purposes

ESFA formula capital fund

ESFA condition improvement fund

Renewal of central heating

Electrical re-wiring

Roof refurbishment

Fire alarm upgrade

Window Replacement

Restricted General Funds

DIE / ESFA Revenue Gronts

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium

Teachers pay grant

Teachers pension grant

Other DfE/ESFA Grants

Catch-up premium

Other Gove rnment Gronts

Local Authority Funded Statement! - 299,493

Other Local Authority Grants - 3,779

Exceptional government funding - 13,841

School Funds 28,796 18,563

Oth e r Ed u cotio no I Ope roti o ns

Educational Activities and Visits

Other

t4t,L24 7,758,023

Restricted Pension Reserve Funds

Pension reserve (977,000)

Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted Funds

General Unrestricted Funds

Catering Fund

Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

39,799

(1,362) L,362

1567,669) 49,593 L,627,478

(1,129,405) (51,299) 2tO,823

(31,920)

(20,696)

(38,577t.

(8,139) 
_ _

L,727,O5t 524,503

112,328 L,289,199

- 3L,920

- 20,696

- 38,577

- 8,139

L6,794

L7,O22

(299,493)

(3,77e1

(13,841)

(1,307)

1L6,794l.
117 m?l _

(1,580,973) (61,299)

(76,000) 3o,ooo

46,052

256,875

(1,023,000)

(835,875) L,758,O23 (1,656,973) (31,299) 1766,L25)

39,799 31,336 (30,236) 40,899

31,659 (43,365) rt,706

62,995 (73,501) !7,706

s ,g?4 2,345,sA lrFgSl43i 3O^OOO fi2,2n

40,899
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YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

17. Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds

Fund balances at 31 August2O2Tare represented by:

SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

COMPANY TIMITED BY GUARANTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Restrlcted

Unrestricted General

Funds Funds

ff

40,928 tsz,q)t
(169,599)

- (81,032)

Restricted

Unrestricted General

Funds Funds

€€

40,899 750,577

1437,5711

(s6,131)

7,374,6t4 t,374,6L4

68,7L7 g62,tL6

(159,599)

- (81,032)

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Long term creditors

Pension scheme liability

Total Net Assets

- (1,171,000) 

- 

(1,171,000)

N,928 (659,150) 1.,4tt3,331 815,099

Restricted

Fixed Asset

Funds

€

Restricted

Fixed Asset

Funds

c

Total

Funds

C

Tota!

Funds

f

Comparative information in respect of the preceeding period is as follows;

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Long term creditors

Pension scheme liability

Tota! Net Assets

18. Commitments Under Operating Leases 2021 2020

f€
At 31 August 2021 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

Assets other than land and buildings

Amounts due within one year - S,Lg7
Amounts due between two and five years inclusive

Amounts due after five years

5,L87

2020

ff
68,717 191,145

68,7L7 Lgt,745

Capitol project summory:

During the year the academy entered into a contracts for electrical re-wiring and security fencing. The academy was
committed to a further cost of f58,717 at the year end. The capital element and repairs element is f nil and f68,,lt7
respectively.

1,435,333 1,435,333

L9l,t45 992,627

1437,5711

(55,131)

(1,023,000) (1,023,000)

40,899 1766,125!- 1,627,478 902,252

19. Capital Commitments

Contracted for, but not provided for in the financial statements
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YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

20. Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and

Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff,

which is managed by Your Pension Service (YPS) for Cumbria County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit

schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial

valuation ofthe TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and ofthe LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions payable to the schemes at 31 August and included in creditors were as follows:

2021

E

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme

The total pension costs to the academy during the year ended 31 August and included in staff costs were as follows:

2020

e.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme deficit recovery

LGPS current service cost/contributions adjustment

Teacherc' Pension Scheme

2021

f.

145,630

66,365

25,550

43,000

2020

C

144,946

58,771

23,548

57,000

284,265280,545

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers'

Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to

opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentaBe of salary -

these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds

provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance

with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4

years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on

assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of

the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5

March 2019. The key elements ofthe valuation and subsequent consultation are:

a

a

employer contribution rates set at23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the

effective date of f218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional

investments held at the valuation date) of €196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of f22,000 million

The SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4%

above the rate of CPl. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of

real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings Srowth is 4.45%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

20. Pension and similar obligations (Continued 1

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from l April 2023.

The employe/s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to f 145,630 (2020: f144,9461.

A copy ofthe valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has accounted for its

contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the information

available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme (IGPS)

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The

total contribution made for the year ended 31 August were as follows:

2021

f
2020

€

Employer's contributions 66,365 SB,77t
Employees'contributions 19,604 :.8,,729

Local Government Pension Scheme deficit recovery 25,550 Zg,54g
LGPS current service cost/contributions adjustment 43,OOO 57,OOO

Total contributions 1t4F19 15gp4g

The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.3% for employers , and 5.5% to :.2.5% for employees depending on
pay bands.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of an

academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

At the balance sheet date the scheme is in deficit. The Academy has entered into an agreement effective from 1 April 2020
to make additional contributions in addition to normal funding levels. lt is anticipated that the payments will be made over
13 years from 1 April 2020, including f25,300 for 2O2O/21, f25,9OO in 2O2t/22 and f26,500 in 2022/23.

lmpact of McCloud judgement

ln 2015, the government introduced reforms to public sector pensions, meaning many public sector workers were moved
into new pension schemes. ln December 2018, the Court of Appeal ruled that the 'transitional protection, offered to
members in these schemes amounted to unlawful discrimination. This case is known as McCloud.

The Supreme Court decision in June 2019 not to allow the government leave to appeal, means the difference in treatment
needs to be remedied across all relevant schemes, including the Local Government pension Scheme (LGpS).

The impact of McCloud was taken into account in the FRS1O2 actuarial valuation and included for disclosure in the trust,s
2ol9l2o financial statements. The impact is included in the past service cost figure as disclosed below.

Page47



YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Pension and similar obligations f Corrtinued )

Principal Actuaraal Assumptions

lnflation assumption (CPl)

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Retiring todoy

Males

Females

Retiring in 20 yeors

Males

Females

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed

life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Discount rate + 0.1%

Discount rate - 0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase

Mortality assumption - l year decrease

CPI rate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

Pay growth + 0.1%

SETTLEBECK SCHOOT ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

At 31

August

2021

Deficit Change

1,117,000

t,226,OOO

1,253,000

1,092,000

t,226,OOO

7,777,000

1,175,000

24.2

27.1

At 31

August

2020

Change

(s4,000) 978,000 (4s,000)

55,000 1,069,000 46,000

82,000 1,086,000 53,000

(79,000) 962,000 (61,000)

55,000 1,070,000 47,OOO

(54,000) 977,ooo (46,000)

4,000 L,027,ooo 4,000

Fairvalue at Fairvalue at

3t August 31 August

2021 2020

ee
557,000 398,000

244,OOO 223,000

- 2,OOO

108,000 63,000

54,000 111,000

457,000 352,000

1,420,000 1,149,000

(2,s91,000) (2,772,0001

(1,171,000) (1,023,000)

At 31

August

202L

2.80%

430%

2.90%

7.70%

At 31

Autust

2021

At 31

Autust
2020

2.30%

3.80%

2.40%

1.80%

At 31

August

2020

22.7 22.6

25.3 25.2

24.3

27.2

Sensitivity analysls

The table below, as produced by Mercer sets out the impact of a small change in assumptions on the defined benefit

obligation.

The Academy Trust's share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme were:

Equities

Government bonds

Other bonds

Property

Cash / liquidity

Other

Total market value of assets

Present value of scheme liabilities

- Funded

- Unfunded

Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any of the Academy's own financial instruments or any property

occupied by, or other assets used by, the Academy'
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YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Pension and slmilar obligations (Cortlnued )

The actual return on scheme assets in the period was f199,000 (2020: f3,000).

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current service cost (net of employee contributions)

Past service (cost)/gain

Administrative expenses

Net lnterest cost

Total operating charge

Analysis of other recognised gains and {!osses)

Remeasurements (liabilities)

Remeasurements (assets)

Total charge

Changes in the deficit in the year:

Deficit in scheme at 1 September 2020

Current service cost

Past service (cost)/gain

lnterest cost

Employer contributions

Actuarial (gain)/loss - Remeasurements

Administration expenses

lnterest income

Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements

Deficit at 31 August 2021

Changes in the present value of defined benefit

obligations were as follows:

At 01 September 2020

Current service cost

lnterest cost

Employee contribution

Past service (cost)/gain

Actuarial (gains)/losses - remeasurements

Benefits/transfers paid

Benefit obligation at 31 August 2021

Changes in the fair value of Academy's share of scheme assets:

At 01 September 2O2O

Return on plan assets

Administrative expenses

Actuarial gain/(losses) - remeasurements

Employer contributions

Employee contribution

Benefits/transfers paid

Closing fair value of scheme assets at 31 August 2021

* Past seryice cost includes: McCloud impact

GMP indexation

2021

f
2020

f
(13s,000) (119,000)

0

(3,000)

(20,000)

(2,000)

(17,000) (17,000)

(155,0(xr) (158,000)

2021 2020

i.e
(263,000) (41,000)

178,000 71,000

(8s,(xro) 30,qr0

2021 2020

fC
1,023,000 977,OOO

13s,000 119,000

- 20,000

38,000 35,000
(92,000) (82,000)

8s,000 (30,000)

3,000 2,000

(21,000) (18,000)

t,t77,0oo 1,023,000

20,000

20,000

2,172,0OO 1,951,000

135,000 119,000

38,000 35,000

20,000 19,000
r 0 20,000

263,000 41,000

(37,000) (13,000)

2,591,000 2,172,000

2021 2020

fE
1,149,000 974,OOO

27,OOO 18,000
(3,000) (2,000)

178,000 7L,OOO

92,000 82,000

20,000 19,000
(37,000) (13.000)

L,420,OOO 1,149,000

2021 2020

EE
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21. Related PartyTransactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from local

public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have

an interest.

All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the AFH,

including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where

required, and with the academy trusfs financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to

connected and related party transactions.

The following related party transactions took place in the period of account:

Related oarties

. Sedbergh Primory School

There were governors who acted for the academy during the year who also acted as governors for Sedbergh

Primary School. The governors have no equitable interest in either entity.

. Settlebeck High School Fund (ChoriU Number: 1124302)

The charity has now been removed from the register but prior to this there were governors who acted for the

academy who also acted as charity trustees for Settlebeck High School Fund which was a seperate charity that

supported the acadmey. Control was present to govern the financial and operating policies ofthe school fund

so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

. South Westmorlond Multi AcademyTrust (SWMAT)

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for the SWMAT also acts as the CFO for Settlebeck School through a non

profit annual service level agreement.

lncome Related Partv Transactions

. Sedbergh Primory School

The academy received catering income of f 10,858 (2020: fL6,929) from Sedbergh Primary School for the

provision of school meals during the year.

During the year the academy recharged Sedbergh Primary School f19,973 (2020: f9,545) for electricity, gas

and water usage.

During the year the academy recharged Sedbergh Primary School f2,008 (2020: f1,855) for various other

supplies/services.

Settlebeck High School Fund

The academy received income of f 14,048 (2020: f Nil) which was a tranfer from bank accounts previously held

by Settlebeck High School Fund which has now been removed from the chrity register'

Expenditure Related Party Transactions

South Westmorlond Multi Acodemy Trust (SWMAT)

During the year the SWMAT invoiced Settlebeck school f30,000 (2020: f30,000) for financial services'
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22. Related Party Transactions - Trustees' Remuneration and Expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the

academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide

undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

Othertrustees did not receive any payments, otherthan expenses, from the academy in respect oftheir role as

trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits for the period was as follows:

Sarah Campbell (Principal from 0L109/L7l:

Remuneration f55,000 to f59,999 (2020: f60,000 to f54,999)

Employer's pension contributions f 15,000 to f 19,999 (2020: f 15,000 to f 19,999)

Jessica Oxley (Staff governor):

Remuneration f5,000 to f9,999 (2020: f15,000 to f19,999)

Employer's pension contributions f0,000 to f4,999 (2020: f0,000 to f4,999)

Sa rah Evans (Staff governor) (Appoi nted t2 I oo I 2otB)

Remuneration f40,000 to f44,999 (2020: f40,000 to €44,999)

Employer's pension contributions f5,000 to f9,999 (2020: f5,000 to f9,999)

During the period ended 31 August 2021, there were travel and subsistence expenses totalling fnil (2020: f1,050)

reimbursed or paid directly to nil trustees (2020:2l..
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23. Trustees' and Officers' lnsurance

ln accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect governors and

officers from claims for negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance for

the year ended 31 August 2021 provides cover up to f10,000,000 (2020: f10,000,000) on any one loss and any one

membership year.

The academy's insurance is via the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA) and the cost of

this insurance is included in the total insurance cost. lt is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers

indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

24. Members tiability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it

being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as

may be required, not exceeding €10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.
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